
 
 
 

 
  9 September 2020 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
will meet on 

Thursday, 10 September 2020 

beginning at 
6:45 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed 

here:https://bit.ly/2G3Fq0l 

 
TO: Councillor Richard Gomer (Chair) 
 Councillor Malcolm Cross (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor Janice Asman 

Councillor Alan Broadhurst 
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey 
Councillor Jephthe Doguie 
Councillor James Duguid 
Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Tim Groves 
Councillor Lucy Jurd 
Councillor David Pragnell 
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 
Councillor Gin Tidridge 

 
CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader 
  
Staff Contacts: Claire Brown, Case Management Officer; Tel: 023 8068 8498; 

Email: claire.brown@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 
Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director Tel: 023 8068 8405 
Email: natalie.wigman@eastleigh.gov.uk 

  

NATALIE WIGMAN 
Corporate Director - Strategy 

____________________________________________________________________ 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in other formats, including 

Braille, audio, large print and other languages, upon request. 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to 
proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It is important, however, that 

Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the only 
participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers 
advising the Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting may be recorded. 

 

Eastleigh House  
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation      
  
 Councillors not on Policy and Performance Committee and members of the public 

can participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways: 
 

 If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to 

be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working 

days (Midday Friday 4 September 2020) before the meeting. Technical and 

etiquette guides will be provided. 

 Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the 

spokesperson’.  Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days 

(Midday Tuesday 8 September 2020) before the date of the meeting. 

Democratic Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read 

out. 

 The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum 

of three minutes if read out.  Please therefore restrict your statement to one 

side of A4 (12 font).  This applies audio/ video recordings also. 

 Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days 

(Midday Friday 4 September 2020) before the meeting.  This must be 

accompanied by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not 

meet technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson 

and shown on the screen.  

 Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk 
  
2. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 8)  
  
 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2020. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      
  
 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 

agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
  
5. Chair's Report     
 
6. Updates from Task and Finish Groups     
 
7. Constitution Review    (Pages 9 - 24) 
 
8. Tree Strategy and Supplementary Planning Document     
 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


9. Cabinet Forward Plan    (Pages 25 - 30) 
 
10. Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme    (Pages 31 - 34) 

 
 
 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Thursday, 15 October 2020 at 6:45 pm 

 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Monday, 20 July 2020  (6:48 pm – 9:16 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Gomer (Chair); Councillors Cross, Asman, Broadhurst, Doguie, 
Duguid, Grajewski, Groves, Jurd, Tyson-Payne and Parker-Jones 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Couldrey, Pragnell 
and Tidridge 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

95. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Grajewski declared an interest in the New Ways with Waste 
item due to links at Hampshire County Council.  
 

96. MINUTES 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 18 June 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

97. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

98. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair reported that an invite to attend a Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Panel Meeting had been extended to Highways England with 
regards to the Smart Motorway on the M27. No commitment to address 
the Committee had been made to date.  
 
The Housing Task and Finish Group had met with Officers and an in-depth 
work plan was being put in place.  
 

99. TREE NURSERY 
 
Councillor Kyrle, Cabinet Member for the Environment, introduced the 
report and highlighted Eastleigh Borough Council’s commitment to planting 
160,000 trees in the borough by 2030 as part of its Climate and 
Environmental Emergency programme.  
 
RESOLVED –  

5

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
That the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel noted the contents 
of the report and made the following recommendations to Cabinet for 
consideration: 
 
The Panel welcomes the proposal to develop a tree nursery and is 
mindful of the need for specialist expertise to ensure the success of 
the project. The panel recommends that the project seek to identify 
any skills gaps and to hire or consult expertise as appropriate. In 
particular, to ensure that the proposed location is appropriate for use 
as a nursery at the intensity envisaged, and to identify and mitigate 
any negative impacts on existing habitat.  
 
The panel discussed the potential for CO2 sequestered by trees from 
the nursery to be 'double counted' by both the Council and (for 
example) businesses that have sponsored a tree. The Panel 
recommends that the approach to accounting for sequestered 
carbon, or other environmental benefits, be developed in such a way 
as to prevent that double counting. 
 
 

100. NEW WAYS WITH WASTE POLICY 
 
Councillor Kyrle, Cabinet Member for the Environment, introduced the 
report and highlighted that the borough was the top authority for recycling 
in Hampshire, however, it was in the third quartile nationally. A number of 
changes were requested to be considered to enable the Council to meet 
its waste obligations and objections.  
 
A presentation was given by the Project Manager for Waste which outlined 
the New Ways with Waste Work Programme. 
 
Councillor Tyson-Payne left the meeting at 20:10.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel commented on the 
proposed revisions to the Domestic Waste and Recycling Policy and 
made the following recommendations to Cabinet for consideration: 
 
The panel recommends that the policy be amended to include an 

explicit acknowledgement that households may request additional 

food waste bins (as well as green recycling bins), should they be 

required. 

 
101. CORPORATE ACTION PLAN 

 
The Strategic Planning Manager introduced the report.  
 

6



3 
 

RESOLVED –  
 
That Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel commented on the 
revised Corporate Action Plan for 2020/21 at Appendix 1 and made 
the following recommendations to Cabinet for consideration: 
 
The Panel notes the proposed Corporate Action plan and 
recommends that: 
 
(i) Wherever possible, targets and milestones are set “within year” to 
provide a clear basis for planning and evaluation; and 
(ii) Wherever possible, measures and KPIs identified are incorporated 
into the Council’s overall performance monitoring process so that 
the relevant data is readily available for monitoring and reflection. 
 
 

102. 2019/20 ANNUAL MONITORING 
 
The Panel considered the report of the Chief Financial Officer.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel noted the Finance and 
Performance Provisional Outturn report for 2019/20.   
 

103. 2020/21 APRIL/MAY MONITORING 
 
The Panel considered the report of the Corporate Director of Strategy and 
extended their thanks to all staff who had maintained performance.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel noted the performance 
of the Council for April to May. 
 

104. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Panel considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 
 

105. POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL'S WORK 
PROGRAMME 
 
Panel members considered their Work Programme to March 2021. 
 
The Panel highlighted the following areas of interest/concern to be shaped 
into their emerging work programme: 
 

 Public Transport Operators and Public Transport Strategy  

7



4 
 

 Walking and Cycling Strategy  

 Hampshire Hospitals Together 
 
It was AGREED that the Work Programme be noted and an invite to 
attend a future meeting would be sent to Transport Operators. 
 

8



 

 

 

Project Initiation Document 

 
Project Details 

Project Name Constitution Review 

Programme Board Management Team 

Project Manager Richard Ward 

Project Sponsor Nick Tustian 

Date Approved  

 

Document Details 

Version Status (draft 
or approved) 

Date Details of change 

0.1 Draft 15 Jul 2020 First draft 

0.2 Draft 31 Jul 2020 Updated after feedback 

0.3 Draft 13 Aug 2020 Updated with timescales 

0.4 Draft 2 Sep 2020 Business Case  

 

  

9

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

2 
 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction .............................................................................................................................4 

1.1. Background ......................................................................................................................4 

2. Project Definition .....................................................................................................................4 

2.1. Purpose ............................................................................................................................4 

2.2. Project Objectives ............................................................................................................5 

2.3. Project Scope....................................................................................................................5 

2.4. Project deliverables (Products) .......................................................................................6 

2.5. Exclusions .........................................................................................................................7 

2.6. Post Implementation .......................................................................................................7 

2.7. Constraints .......................................................................................................................7 

2.7.1. Priority ......................................................................................................................7 
2.7.2. Timescale ..................................................................................................................7 
2.7.3. Dependencies ...........................................................................................................8 
2.7.4. Interfaces to other projects .....................................................................................8 
2.7.5. Planning Considerations (delete if not applicable) ... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

2.8. Assumptions .....................................................................................................................8 

3. Business Case ...........................................................................................................................8 

3.1. Initial Business Case .........................................................................................................8 

3.2. Benefits ............................................................................................................................9 

3.3. Budget ..............................................................................................................................9 

3.4. Council Priorities ..............................................................................................................9 

4. Project Organisation ................................................................................................................9 

4.1. Project Organisation Structure ........................................................................................9 

4.2. Role Profiles .................................................................................................................. 10 

5. Project Plan ........................................................................................................................... 11 

5.1. Project Plan ................................................................................................................... 11 

5.2. Communications Plan ................................................................................................... 12 

5.3. Branding Plan ................................................................................................................ 12 

6. Project Controls .................................................................................................................... 12 

6.1. Tolerances ..................................................................................................................... 13 

6.2. Method of approach ..................................................................................................... 13 

10



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

3 
 

6.3. Exception Process ......................................................................................................... 13 

6.4. Initial Risk Log and Mitigations .................................................................................... 14 

7. Security .................................................................................................................................. 14 

8. Training ................................................................................................................................. 14 

9. Equality / Diversity ............................................................................................................... 14 

10. Data Protection (applies to all projects) ........................................................................... 14 

If yes, please send completed full DPIA to DPO at dp@eastleigh.gov.uk ..................................... 15 

11. Incorporating Lessons Learned ......................................................................................... 15 

 

  

11



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

4 
 

 

1. Introduction  
1.1. Background 

Under provisions contained within the Local Government Act 2000 (and as 
subsequently amended) the Council is required to prepare and maintain a 
Constitution. The Constitution must contain: 
 

● The standing orders and rules of procedure of the Council. 
● The Members Code of Conduct 
● Such other information as the Secretary of State may direct 
● Other information (if any) as the Council considers appropriate  

 
Secretaries of State have produced since 2000 more than 100 different matters that 
are required to be included within the Constitution including members allowance 
schemes, joint working arrangements with other local authorities and pay policy 
statements, 
 
The Constitution must be available for inspection by the public at all reasonable 
hours and a copy can be requested upon payment of a reasonable fee. 
 
It has been an aspiration for some time to review the Constitution, and to make the 
content more accessible and fit-for purpose, reflecting Eastleigh’s core values. 

 

 

2. Project Definition 
2.1. Purpose 

It has been said that prime objective of a good local authority is to have an accessible 
and modern Constitution.  The Constitution should be seen as a “living” document—
i.e. not something which is set in stone for all time, but something which is kept 
under regular review and which the Council is willing to adjust or clarify in the light 
of new or changing circumstances. 
 
The Constitution should be “owned” by the whole Council—i.e. not something which 
is under the control of the Cabinet or any other part of the Council but something in 
which the whole Council has a genuine interest.  
 
The revised Constitution will be signed off by Group Leaders, Management Team, 
and ultimately adopted by Council. 
 
Having a Constitution which is reviewed and updated regularly serves a valuable and 
relevant purpose by striking a fair balance between the interests of the various 
groups within the Council—e.g. between the Cabinet and the rest of the Council, 
between the largest political group and opposition groups, between frontbenchers 
and backbenchers and between Councillors and staff. 
 

12



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

5 
 

This project is therefore focussed on updating and reviewing the Constitution of 
Eastleigh Borough Council, in order to make it fit for purpose, and able to react to 
ongoing requirements of the Council. 

 

 
2.2. Project Objectives 

 

The project will deliver a complete review of the existing Constitution, and revise and 
update the language and content where needed. 

 

• Produce a Constitution that is "Fit for Purpose" and "Understandable" by 
those who read it. 

 

• Develop a Constitution that is "locally driven" and should reflect the values 
and culture of Eastleigh Borough Council. 

 

• (If possible and applicable) Look at the number of decision-making bodies in 
the Council and reduce where possible with additional delegation to staff 
where appropriate. There should also be a move to remove any ambiguity 
and make roles of Committees explicit avoiding any duplication (for example 
clear scrutiny arrangements) 

 

• Ensure that users & stakeholders have been appropriately consulted about 
the changes 

 

• Ensure Members (Group Leaders) have been consulted, and have a role in 
approving the new Constitution 

 

  

 
2.3. Project Scope 

Complete review of Constitution complete for submission to November Council 

 

Including; 

 

• Review of Delegations, delegated roles and vacancies 

• Review of Job Titles 

• Contract Standing Orders 

• Financial Code of Practice 

• Other elements of the Constitution (rules of procedures) 

• Review threshold scheme for petitions 

• Consider the opportunity for making the Constitution a more modern, 
technical document with elements such as hyperlinks to references, 
searchable text (possibly with embedded metadata to aid this) - full 
opportunity to be advised by IT services. 

13



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

6 
 

Also included; 
 

• Consideration of Officer training 

• Member training 

• Setting up a maintenance schedule for new document 

• Identifying best practice to adopt (LGA / other councils) 

• Sub-Project – Review of Financial Regulations 

• Sub-Project – Ongoing revision of Contract Standing Orders 

 
Out of scope but to note (Normal schedule 2021) 
 

• Member Allowances review (as usual on the 4-year schedule) 
 

 

 
 
 
 

2.4. Project deliverables (Products) 
Prior to commencement of review, obtain feedback from interested parties as to  
what works well and what could be improved. This will include staff and 
Members.  

 
Check all new legislation to see what needs to be incorporated (including any 
impact of Covid-19 legislation) 

 
Incorporate changes as required as a result of Legal Services recent review of 
Contract Standing Orders (with reference to the revision of financial limits) 

 
To incorporate appropriate procedures in respect of virtual meetings and to 
consider if hybrid meetings are possible and desired with some members 
meeting in person and others attending virtually 

 

To consider if a threshold-based petition scheme is required; if so, then to review 
and implement the guidance around this. 
 
In addition to a review of standing orders, Democratic Services consider that the 
following areas require review; 
 

• Responsibility for Functions 

• Rules for Procedure 

• Committee structure (and in particular overlap between A&R and P&P)  

• General updating and more easily understandable wording.  

• Ensuring compliance with the DCLG Open and Accountable local government 

14



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

7 
 

guidance 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/upl

oads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf 

 

 
2.5. Exclusions 

 

 
 

2.6. Post Implementation 

 

Post implementation, the new Constitution will need regular review and updating.  

This will be under the purview of the Monitoring Officer, with the support of 

Democratic Services.  A suitable maintenance programme is essential, in order to 

maintain high levels of quality and reliability in the accuracy of the Constitution. 

 

 
2.7. Constraints 
 

2.7.1. Priority 
This is a High Priority Project for the Council to ensure the Constitution is up to date, 

fit for purpose, accurate, is in plain English and accessible. 

 

   
2.7.2. Timescale 

Insert here the timescales in which the project stages will be 
completed.  
 

Stage Target Date 

Start Up End July 2020 

Management Liaison 09/09/20 

Policy and Performance 01/10/20 

 Terms of Reference of Working Groups, and Task and Finish teams 

 

Scheme of Management Responsibilities’ – this will not be reviewed at this time 

 
Changes to the delegated authorities to Programme Boards.  There will be no change to 

the operation of these boards, and they will not appear in the Constitution 

 

15

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Openness_Guide.pdf


Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

8 
 

Full Council 12/11/20 

Council to adopt revisions  Nov 2020 

 
2.7.3. Dependencies 

 This is dependent upon: 

• Staff resources being available 

• Councillor resource being available 

• Consensus on recommended changes 

• Committee timetabling 

• The sub-Projects (CSO and Financial Regs) being completed. 

 

 
2.7.4. Interfaces to other projects 

 The recommendations and lessons learned from the Recovery Governance 

workstream will feed into this project. 

 

Sub Project – Financial Regs review 

Sub-Project – CSO review 

 

 
 

2.8. Assumptions 
It is assumed that central Government will pass legislation allowing virtual meetings 
to continue after May 2021 
 
It is assumed that the proposed changes being made will not be contentious, to 
allow us to meet the challenging timescales 
 
It is assumed that all existing Committees will continue in place. 
 
It is assumed that the Project will be able to call on all required resources on 
demand, as there is an extremely constrained timescale. 
 

 

3. Business Case 
3.1. Initial Business Case 

 
 

Eastleigh Borough Council is required by law to have a Constitution and to keep it 
under periodic review. Whilst the Constitution has been regularly updated it has not 
been comprehensively reviewed for some time and there is a requirement to 
undertake a review to make sure that it is “Fit for Purpose” and reflects our current 
working practices including the interim measures regarding virtual meetings which 

16



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

9 
 

hopefully the Government will allow to continue after the current Covid 19 
regulations end in May 2021. The various codes and documentation attached to the 
Constitution will also need to be checked to confirm that they are up to date. There 
is also a need to ensure that the Constitution reflects best practice (including full 
compliance with equality and accessibility legislation) and assists both councillors 
and staff in the process of democratic decision making and can be fully understood 
by the members of the public who interact with the Council. 

 

 
3.2. Benefits 

 The project will deliver a number of soft benefits – critically, it will deliver a modern, 
fit-for-purpose Constitution that will benefit a significant number of Officers and 
Business Functions, as well as helping make the business and democracy of the Council 
more accessible and transparent. 

 

 
 

3.3. Budget 
 

This project is assumed to be cost-neutral at the outset, with the only costs being staff 
time.  As such, there is no formally allocated budget. 
 
Any costs that become evident will need to be separately sourced and captured to feed 
into the End Report and Lessons Learned. 

    
3.4. Council Priorities 
This project will build towards achievement of the following Council Strategic 
priorities.  
(Click here for an explanation of our Strategic Priorities) 
 

 This is a High Priority Project for the Council to ensure the Constitution is up to date, fit 

for purpose, accurate, is in plain English and accessible.  

 

4. Project Organisation 
4.1. Project Organisation Structure 
 
Please note that these are suggested roles, thought should be given to ensure the 
right people are involved at the right time. 

 Officer Name & 
Service Unit 

Estimated 
no. hours 
required 

Confirmed 

Project Board Roles    

Project Sponsor Nick Tustian   

17

https://eastleighbc.force.com/staff/s/article/Corporate-Plan-2015-2025
https://eastleighbc.force.com/staff/s/article/Corporate-Plan-2015-2025


Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

10 
 

Senior Supplier(s) Jo Cassar (Audit)   

Senior User (who will own 
the end product once 
project has been delivered) 

Laura Johnston 
(Dem Services) 

  

Specialists (Legal, Finance, 
Planning, Asset etc.) 

Legal, Finance, 
Dem Services, 

Project 
Management 

Office 

  

Project Manager 
Project Support 

Richard Ward 
Nicola Treeby 

  

Member Group Leaders   

Project Team Roles    

Administration CMO (on demand)   

Finance Andy Smith   

IT  TBC   

Comms Jade Mizen   

HR Training Amanda Fleet   

 
 
 
 
4.2. Role Profiles 
 
 

Role Role Profile 
 

Project Sponsor • Is accountable for the project  

• Makes the business decisions for the project 

• Makes user resources available 

• Approves work products 
 

Project Board 
Project Sponsor 
Senior User 
Senior Supplier 

• Approves and signs off the PID to enable the 
project to start 

• Provides guidance on issue / change requests 

• Effective decision making 

• Commits project resources 

• Provides overall direction on the project 

• Approves the Project End Report 
 

18



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

11 
 

Project Manager 
(with support from 
Project Co-
ordinator) 

• Receives or creates the Project Initiation Matrix 
with information from the Sponsor 

• Creates the PID 

• Reports progress to the Project Board 

• Directs the Project Team 

• Plans and monitors the project plan 

• Plans and monitors project budget 

• Maintains the Risk, Issue and Change Registers 
(using the Project Workbook) 

• Prepares Highlight Reports 

• Prepares Issue / Change Reports as necessary 

• Prepares the Project End Report 

• Confirms project completion 

• (Project Co-Ordinator – will monitor admin 
resource levels, and request and assign 
supplementary CMO resource to ensure that 
the work is done) 

 

Project Team • Reports to the Project Manager 

• Has responsibility for delivering the project and 
creating or delivery of the products 
 

 
 

5. Project Plan 
5.1. Project Plan 
The plan in the project workbook shows how and when activities of the project 
will occur, what resources they require and the dependencies between activities. 
The Project Manager will regularly review and update the Project Plan to check 
progress and ensure that the activities are on target. 
 
Show the project stages and high-level tasks with start and finish dates here: 
 

Stage / High Level Tasks/ Milestones Start Finish Duration 

Management liaison paper to be submitted by  09/09/20  

Policy & Performance paper to be submitted by  01/10/20  

Full Council paper to be submitted by  12/11/20  

Predicted project timescale     

 
 
 

19



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

12 
 

5.2. Communications Plan 
The Communications Plan identifies all the parties with an interest in the project 
and the means and frequency of communication between them and the project. 
This plan should specifically set out how the Councils involvement in and support 
for the project will be promoted and specifically state what signage and branding 
will be placed on project facilities and literature. This should be discussed and 
agreed with the Corporate Communications team. 

 

Who What / How When 

Internal   

Group Leaders Chief Exec 1-2-1s Monthly 

Officers Staff Briefing / Training When complete 

Members Information on the project, 
full Council 

At project initiation and sign 

off 

External   

Public Low-key information / 
website update 

At completion 

   

 
Include information on ensuring all persons involved cooperate and coordinate 
with each other including adjacent sites. 

 
5.3. Branding Plan 
All projects, facilities or services which are owned, operated or supported by the 
council should have clearly branded signage, in accordance with the council’s 
Corporate Design Guidelines. The cost of this should be included within the 
project costs. Include details of the signage that will be provided, together with 
an example of the design.  The Strategy Communications and Marketing Team 
will be happy to help and advise on signage and cost. Note – signage may require 
separate planning permissions – check on this and plan accordingly 
 
This is unlikely to be a major factor in the project.  Any consideration of branding can be 
picked up under the core Communications workstream. 

 
6. Project Controls 

This section will detail how the project will be managed and controlled (example 
below) 

Regular reporting will be made to Management Team – this will be fortnightly and will 

report on progress toward and achievement of milestones. 

 

The PID will be kept updated, to accurately reflect the deliverables of the project 

20



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

13 
 

 

A project plan with a clear delivery trajectory will be developed to allow accurate 

delivery. 

 

Democratic Services will sign off the Governance elements 

Audit will sign off the Regulatory control elements 

Monitoring Officer will sign off the Legal elements 

 

 
6.1. Tolerances 

 With this project, there is no distinct budget, so any identified cost will need to be 

sourced by exception. 

 

The timescale is fixed – we must be able to deliver a revised constitution to Council 

in November, and therefore have successfully gone through all relevant previous 

committees as needed. 

 

The scope therefore may need to be adjusted, and aspirational elements may need 

to be pushed into a ‘Tranche 2’ after November.  The critical deliverable is that a 

revised, modern and fit-for-purpose Constitution goes to November’s Council. 

 

 
6.2. Method of approach 

 An adapted PRINCE2 approach will be utilised, with Agile elements to prevent slow 

reaction to events. 

 

A PID and Highlight reports will be completed, and Management Team will act as an 

Executive Board.  The project team will meet virtually at least every fortnight and 

review the milestones and check we are on track to achieve them. 

 

 
 

6.3. Exception Process 
The Project Manager will frequently review and report on project progress. If the 
Project Manager feels that any of the tolerances agreed for the project are likely 
to be exceeded, they will report the matter to the Programme Board / Project 
Board / Sponsor by means of a Project Exception Report. This will provide 
analysis, options and a recommendation for the way forward for discussion by 
the Programme Board / Project Board / Sponsor. 
 
 

 

21



Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

14 
 

6.4. Initial Risk Log and Mitigations 
A risk log template is held within the Project Workbook. It contains a risk analysis 
for all known risks associated with the project and any of its dependencies. It 
includes mitigations and / or contingency plans. The Project Manager will actively 
manage the risks by regularly reviewing and updating the Risk Log.  Reviewing 
the risk log should be a regular part of the Board agenda, to ensure the Board are 
aware of the steps being taken and/or the risk level being tolerated. 
 
The two main risks to the successful implementation of this project are the constrained 
timescales, and the availability of resource.  The timescales are a management and 
political aspiration, and so should be considered as a hard deadline.  The resource 
constraint can be worked with by drawing in CMO resource to assist with tasks.  There 
may need to be consideration to de-scoping some of the more aspirational elements of 
the project to hit the deadline. 

 
7. Security 

 The Constitution will be a public document, and should be accessible to officers, 

Members and the public.  However, there may need to be IT involvement in order to 

create a technically accomplished document with automated links, searches and so 

forth.  It is not clear how much IT time may be required. 

 

 
8. Training 

 There will be training components that will be required, for both officer and 
member training in the use of and understanding of the Constitution.  These are 
likely to be taken care of in two different approached (HR Training for the officers, 
and Democratic Services for the Member training) 

 

 
9. Equality / Diversity 

 An EQIA will be required for this project, and it will be particularly important to 

ensure that the Constitution has gender-neutral language and does not include any 

exclusionary language.   

 

 
10. Data Protection (applies to all projects) 

 
Confirm Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) Stage 1 has been completed 
and sent to the data protection officer at dp@eastleigh.gov.uk    

 
Full DPIA required?        

Yes                             No                                                                   
 

22

mailto:dp@eastleigh.gov.uk


Eastleigh Borough Council                                                                         
Project Initiation Document 
 
 

15 
 

If yes, please send completed full DPIA to DPO at dp@eastleigh.gov.uk  
 

11. Incorporating Lessons Learned 
Best practice from other councils, and advice to be sought from LGA – the lessons 
learned from peer councils will be incorporated into this project 

 

 

23

mailto:dp@eastleigh.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: August 2020 to April 2021 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

17 September 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
 

25

A
genda Item

 9



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Home Choice Allocations Policy  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020   
 

Cabinet are asked to 
approve the following 
amendments to the policy: 
 

 Increase the qualification 
criteria threshold for 
applicants’ joint gross 
household income from 
£45,000 pa to £60,000 pa 
in order to have parity with 
the other four local 
authorities signed up to 
the Hampshire Home 
Choice agreement. 

 Award high priority 
banding (Band 2) to 
applicants occupying 
homeless temporary 
accommodation stock for 
2 years. 

 Effect amendments 
throughout the policy to 
reflect the legislative 
changes brought about by 
the introduction of the 
Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017. 

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

26



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   17 Sep 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

22 October 2020 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
Leader of the 
Council 

Yes 

 
10105 Woodhouse Lane Sports 
Facilities Project  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
approve forward funding for 
delivery of the community 
sports pitches and additional 
sports facilities in advance of 
allocated S106 receipts. 

Harry Lee /  
 

Yes 

 
Write Off Irrecoverable Debts  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

To approve the write-off of 
irrecoverable debts. 

Mark Reed /  
 

Yes 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee 
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
comment on and approve 
the Borough Council’s 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan. 

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

27



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

4 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   22 Oct 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

26 November 2020 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Fees and Charges  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020  All Pre Decision 
Scrutinies 
 

To consider and approve 
Corporate Fees and 
Charges. 

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Financial and 
Performance Monitoring  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan. 

Emma Pearce /  
 

28



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

5 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   26 Nov 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

10 December 2020 
 

Yes 

 
Covid-19 Response  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020   
 

Cabinet will be asked to note 
an update on the Council’s 
response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and approve plans 
for the recovery work 
needed. 

Natalie Wigman, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Strategy /  
 

Yes 

 
Treasury Management Half 
Year Report  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee 
 

To consider and approve the 
Treasury Management Half 
Year report. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
Community Infrastructure 
Projects (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   10 Dec 2020   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

10 January 2021 
 

29



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

6 

Yes 

 
2021 - 2022 Borough Council 
Budget  
 

Cabinet   11 Jan 2021  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider and recommend 
the 2021 – 2022 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval. 

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Capital and Treasury Strategy  
 

Cabinet   11 Jan 2021   
 

To consider and approve the 
Capital and Treasury 
Strategy. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Infrastructure 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   11 Jan 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet      
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager 
Publication Date: 02 September 2020 
 

30



Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 20/21 

Item for Consideration Focus for Scrutiny Officer 

 

JULY 2020 

Corporate Action Plan 19/20 
Review 

 DB 

Corporate Action Plan Pre-decision scrutiny DB 

Quarterly Performance Data 
Q3,4 

Commentary on covid19 plus additional indicators to help interpret 
COVID19 impact on services 

 

Tree Nursery Pre-decision scrutiny, congruence with Climate Action Plan Paul Naylor 

New Ways with Waste 
Project (Waste &  Recycling) 

Project Scope, Focus, Priorities Gale Smith 

Waste Policy Revisions Pre-decision scrutiny of some changes to the waste policy Gale Smith / 
Paul Naylor 

SEPT 2020 

COVID-19 Recovery Plans  NW 

Constitution Review Discussion and update  

Trees SPD Pre-decision  

Draft Policy Review 
Schedule 

To inform work plan DB 

OCT 2020 

31

A
genda Item

 10



Pollution Strategy  Neil Scott 

COVID19 Recovery Scoping and policy outline NW 

Report & Reccs from Social 
Policy and Health & 
Wellbeing Group  

Task and Finish Group report and recommendations  

NOV 2020 

   

   

   

DEC 2020 

Public Transport Operators & 
Public Transport Strategy 

Scrutiny of PTOs, plus introduction to process for public transport 
strategy review 

Cali Sparks 

Climate Change Action Plan Regular 6-monthly scrutiny of progress and changes to CCAP Jason Light 

   

JAN 2021 

Planning Enforcement   

   

   

FEB 2021 

32



Community Safety 
Partnership Review 

 Melvin Hartley 

T.B.D. 

M27 Smart Motorway Invitation issued to Highways England  

Walking & Cycling Strategy Strategy for Feedback; ideally before it’s a “pre-decision” item Cali Sparkes 

Sport & Active Lifestyle 
Strategy (likely delayed by 
COVID?) 

  

Topic: Supporting our Parish 
Councils ** 

COVID-19; need permission to publish from PCs?  

Topic: Economic 
Development and Local High 
Streets ** 

COVID-19 Response; recovery agenda.  

OCTOBER? 

 

Topic: Encouraging 
Sustainable Prosperity 

Mash-up of Economy and Environment  

Topic: Future Population 
Growth and Service Delivery 

  

Digital Inclusion 
Lockdown = less comms via 
non-digital inc parish 
councils, volunteer groups; 
loneliness 

  

 

33



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Constitution Review
	9 Cabinet Forward Plan
	10 Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme

